
 
Madras Planning Commission 

March 16, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF MADRAS 
125 SW “E” STREET 
MADRAS, OR 97741 

541-475-2344 
 
 

Planning Commission Meeting            March 16, 2016 
City Hall, Council Chambers                                                               7:00 p.m. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order  
 
 

II. Consent Agenda 
 

A. Approval of March 16, 2016 Planning Commission Agenda 
B. Approval of September 2, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 
 

III. Visitor Comments   
 
 

IV. Daybreak Spa Studio Conditional Use and Home Occupation (Files: CU-16-1 & HO-16-1) 
 

(Quasi-Judicial) 
 

1. Open Public Hearing* 
2. Planning Commission to Declare any Potential or Existing Conflicts of Interest 

or Ex-Parte Contact. 
3. Planning Commission to indicate whether they will be abstaining from 

participation in the Public Hearing. 
4. Those in attendance to be provided the opportunity to challenge Planning 

Commission impartiality. 
5. Staff Report 
6. Applicant Testimony 
7. Proponent Testimony 
8. Neutral Testimony 
9. Opponent Testimony 
10. Applicant Rebuttal Testimony 
11. Close Public Hearing 
12. Planning Commission Deliberation** 

 
* See page 3 for Quasi-judicial Land Use Hearing Statement  
 
** The Planning Commission will either approve, approve with conditions of approval, deny, or 
continue the Public Hearing to a date and time certain. 
 



 
Madras Planning Commission 

March 16, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

 

V. Annual Review of Planning Commission By-Laws. 
     

Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director 
 
 

VI. Additional Discussion 
 
 

VII. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the above referenced meeting; however, the agenda does not limit the ability of the 
Planning Commission to consider additional subjects.  Meetings are subject to cancellation without 
notice. This meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend.  This is an 
open meeting under Oregon Revised Statutes, not a community forum; audience participation is at 
the discretion of the City Planning Commission.  Anyone wishing to address the Commission 
will need to register prior to the meeting.  The meeting will be audio taped; minutes of this and 
all public meetings are available for review at the Madras City Hall.  The meeting place is 
handicapped accessible; those needing assistance please contact the City of Madras Community 
Development prior to the meeting. 
 
 



 
Madras Planning Commission 

March 16, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Statement for Quasi-judicial Land Use Hearings 
 
In each of the quasi-judicial agenda items listed on the agenda, the following procedure 
shall govern the hearings: 
 
Planning Commission Chair, please read the following: 
 
1. The Planning Commission will declare ex parte communications, including site visits as 

well as actual and potential conflicts of interests.  Those in attendance will have an 
opportunity to challenge the disclosures. 

 
2. A planning staff representative will outline the application and the approval criteria.  This 

information is also outlined in the staff report which is available to the public. 
 
3. The Planning Commission will hear testimony, receive evidence and consider the 

testimony, evidence and information already submitted into the record. 
 
4. Testimony and evidence at these hearings must be directed toward the criteria set forth 

in the notice of the hearing and listed in the respective staff report.  In addition, 
testimony may be directed to any other criteria in the comprehensive land use plan of 
the City or land use regulations which any person believes applies. 

 
5. The applicant has the burden of proving that his or her application meets all of the 

applicable criteria. 
 
6. Failure on the part of any person to raise an issue with sufficient specificity to afford the 

Planning Commission and parties to this proceeding an opportunity to respond to the 
issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals on that issue. 

 
7. Each hearing will be conducted in the following order:  The staff will summarize the 

issues raised by the application and review the applicable criteria.  The applicant will 
then have an opportunity to make a presentation and offer testimony and evidence.  
Other persons supporting the application will then be given an opportunity to present 
testimony.  Next, opponents will then be given a chance to make a presentation.  After 
both proponents and opponents have made a presentation, the applicant will be allowed 
to make a rebuttal presentation.  The Council may offer an opportunity for opponents to 
respond to the applicant’s rebuttal.  At the conclusion of this hearing, the staff will be 
afforded an opportunity to make any closing comments.  The Council may limit the time 
period for presentations.   

 



 
 

Madras Planning Commission 
September 9, 2015 

Page 1 of 8 
 

City of Madras 
Planning Commission Meeting 

Official Minutes 
September 2, 2015 

 
 
  

I. Call to Order   
The City of Madras Planning Commission public meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Ali 
Alire at 7:18 p.m. on Wednesday, September 2, 2015 in the Madras City Hall Council Chambers 
at 125 SW E. Street. 
 
Commissioners in Attendance: 
Vice Chair Ali Alire 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz 
Commissioner Denise Piza 
 
Vacancy: 
One Vacancy  
 
Staff Members in Attendance: 
Community Development Director; Nicholas Snead, City Administrator; Gus Burril, and 
Administrative Assistant; Michele Quinn 
 
Visitors in Attendance were: 
Eric Pies  

 
II. Consent Agenda 

 
a) Adoption of the September 2, 2015 agenda 

 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead I would like to add to the agenda the August 
19, 2015 Planning Commission minutes to be reviewed and considered by the Commission this 
evening. There are a couple of options for the Commission in terms of reviewing this you can 
put it before the public hearings or if you want to review after your public hearings.    
   
The consensus of the Planning Commission members was to accept Community Development 
Directors Snead’s request to add the August 19, 2015 Planning Commission meeting minutes to 
the end of the meeting agenda, and in doing so acknowledged acceptance of the consent 
agenda. 
 
       

III. Visitors Comments 
      There were no visitor comments. 
 

IV. Public Hearings 
 

A. Eric Pies Conditional Use & Home Occupation, Files: CU-15-1 & HO-15-1 
 
Vice Chair Ali Alire the public hearing for Eric Pies Conditional Use and Home Occupation file 
CU-15-1 and HO-15-1. We are going to open the Public Hearing do any of the Planning 



 
 

Madras Planning Commission 
September 9, 2015 

Page 2 of 8 
 

Commissioners declare any potential or existing conflicts of interest or ex-parte contact? Do 
any Planning Commissioners indicate whether they will be abstaining from the participation in 
the Public Hearing? Those in attendance to be provided the opportunity to challenge 
Planning Commission impartiality, then we will move on to the staff report. 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead This evening staff would like to present 
the Eric Pies Conditional Use and Home Occupation request. The proposal this evening is to 
issue one decision for Conditional Use and Home Occupation, so one decision for both 
permits. The applicant has proposed to conduct a Home Occupation at the property 
addressed 434 NE Plaza Place. The property is identified as tax lot 600 on Jefferson County 
Assessors map 11-13-01BD the property is zoned R-1, and is developed with a single family 
detached dwelling the property is located in the Bel Air Subdivision. Staff has reviewed the 
application we have sent notice to all property owners within 250 feet. Staff has also 
published notice of the public hearing this evening in the Madras Pioneer at least 21 days in 
advance this evenings hearing. There by meeting the notice requirements in Article 9 of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance.  
 
The applicant is proposing to operate a fire arms repair business from their residence the 
applicant has said in the materials submitted that their clients will not be coming to the 
residence. So he will be going to the clients place and picking up the fire arms at that place 
so there will be very minimal traffic coming to the property as a result of the home 
occupation. Staff has reviewed the criteria as identified in the staff report. Staff finds that it 
meets the criteria as a result of both notices staff has not received any phone calls, emails, or 
anyone coming to City Hall voicing any concerns or opposition or support for the proposal. As 
such Staff is not aware of any issues that need to be resolved by the Planning Commission 
this evening. On page 2 of the staff report Staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
approve files CU-15-1 and HO-15-1 based on the Planning Commission’s findings and 
decisions. 
 
Vice Chair Ali Alire hearing no questions and moving on to applicant testimony  
 
Eric Pies hello my name is Eric Pies. I am the resident of 434 NE Plaza Place. My proposal is 
to start my own gun smithing business it is low key; it is only 132 square foot bedroom that is 
converted to shop. There is going to be no impact on the residents that are around me in the 
neighborhood. At most the traffic would be a UPS truck coming once or twice a month to 
deliver parts. I go to pick up and deliver when I am done, there will be no address listed on 
my website or on my business cards. The public will have no knowledge of where my 
business is at other than a cell phone number. I don’t know of any other impact there might 
be.  
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz in regards to safety, gun powder, cleaning fluid, solvents 
where does the planning review from your office relate to that? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead based on the approval criteria we wouldn’t 
be looking into that perhaps the applicant could in lighten you on the presents or absence of 
those items you mentioned.  
 
Eric Pies there will be some solvents for cleaning there will not be any gun powder because I 
will not be doing any ammunition work. The solvents will be minimal because it is just the 
cleaning portion and that will be inside a ventilated room. It will not affect outwardly toward 
the community. So I can’t see with the minimal use that there would be an issue with the 
solvents.  



 
 

Madras Planning Commission 
September 9, 2015 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 
Vice Chair Ali Alire no other questions? Thank you. We are going to move on to the 
proponent is there any one in support of the proposal that would like to testify? No, is there 
any neutral testimony? No, is there any opponent that would like to testify? At this time we 
will close the Public Hearing and we will deliberate. Is there any one that would like to start 
that?  
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz I am happy with the staff report, Eric you answered my 
questions my biggest concern is the safety aspect of it.  
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIR ALI ALIRE TO APPROVE FILE CU-15-1 AND HO-15-1 
BASED ON THE FINDINGS AND DECISION. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER DENISE PIZA.  THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 

B.  City of Madras Sign Variance, File V-15-2 
 

 Quasi-Judicial Hearing 
 
Vice Chair Ali Alire we are going to call to order file V-15-2. Does anyone on the Planning 
Commission have any potential or existing conflicts of interest of ex-parte? Will anyone on 
the Planning Commission  be abstaining from participation in the Public Hearing? Those in 
attendance to be provided the opportunity to challenge Planning Commission impartially? We 
will now move on to the staff report.  

 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead thank you Chair Alire this evening the City 
of Madras is the applicant, a little unique in this situation. We are requesting the Planning 
Commission to grant approval to the City to get a variance to the City’s sign code. Namely 
the City’s sign code in policy requires that every sign be located on the property for which 
that business is located. In this case the City is requesting an exception to that. The City has 
worked a long time on planning and constructing the J Street project and now we are 
constructing phase one of two phases. It has been a significant amount of work and we are 
starting to see that phase one come complete. Just before we started construction staff was 
made aware that businesses would be affected by the project where they once had direct 
frontage to Hwy 97 with the realignment they no longer would. In affect what that would have 
done is no longer give those businesses the opportunity to put a sign out in front of the Hwy 
like other businesses in our community can.  
 
The property owners affected asked the City to resolve that and the solution we have come 
up with is to install 3 signs that businesses specially affected shown in the staff report would 
be able to use. Understanding that the proposed signage would not be the same signage that 
they could have had before if they still fronted the Hwy. This is as good of a proposal or 
solution that the City believes that we can provide those businesses. Recognizing that it is 
not as ideal as some would wish with that said there are 3 signs that we are proposing. They 
will all be located within right of way before I conclude and go on to other agenda items we 
have a staff member from ODOT. I would like to provide the opportunity to weigh in this 
evening before you conduct testimony. So that is what we are asking for this evening. It is a 
rare situation, we are not going to have to many more J Street projects if you will, and so we 
are proposing this to accommodate the needs of our business community. So with that Gary 
would you mind coming up to the podium and provide any additional comments that you may 
have beyond what I said. 
 



 
 

Madras Planning Commission 
September 9, 2015 

Page 4 of 8 
 

Gary Farnsworth I don’t have much more to add Nick we are definitely doing this in a 
partnership to support businesses. This is very unique for us and very unique for the City we 
have really honed in on location and the businesses we want to support. They will be on 
ODOT right of way and they will be maintained by the City. 
 
Commissioner Denise Piza how will this impact the visibility of the drivers? 
 
Gary Farnsworth it will be outside of the normal safe driving site distance so there won’t be 
any obstructions between vehicles and autos and people walking or biking. So it won’t 
change safety it will be very similar to signs that you have in the community entering into 
shopping centers.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead the only thing that I think I would add to 
that is I don’t think the average person driving down the Hwy would notice the difference 
between this sign and any other sign.  
 
Dennis Prince I am Dennis Prince and I have property that is involved in this process and first 
off thank you for doing the sign thing. I have a few questions about them, one is there is three 
different signs; there is different numbers of businesses that those signs serve. So how much 
of the sign does each business get and how is that figured? What is the fee structure going to 
be for the signs?  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead those are two very good questions. First 
on terms of the allocation of the area of the sign, I can’t exactly tell you the dimensions that 
each business will have other than it will be spilt up equitably. 
 
Dennis Prince how long until you will know? These businesses have to have the sign made 
that takes time. This project has already hurt businesses and impacted them quite a bit it 
would be nice to jump on that as soon as they can.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead  I will work with ODOT staff and the Public 
Works Department and see what that is and I can report back to you individually if that is 
acceptable to you.  
 
Dennis Prince when will the new addresses go into effect? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead I don’t know maybe the City Administrator 
has a better idea.  
 
Dennis Prince that is another thing that businesses have to plan for new stationary, 
envelopes and advertising. 
 
City Administrator Gus Burril we will ask Rich Black from Jefferson County to make a 
determination and give that to us and issue that out to the businesses.  
 
Dennis Prince the notice that I got said the meetings started at 7:30 so I missed the public 
comment portion of this can I make a couple of comments?  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead I apologize if that is the case I did not 
know that error had occurred for simplicity purposes of conducting the hearing. 
 



 
 

Madras Planning Commission 
September 9, 2015 

Page 5 of 8 
 

Dennis Prince they have to do with the project. One of them is, I know that Madras is a Tree 
City USA. As a private citizen or a business person if I take a tree out I have to put a tree 
back. ODOT and the City have taken out a number of trees during this project are they 
replacing them, and if so when and where?  
 
City Administrator Gus Burril  I guess could you sketch up the ones removed and sketch up 
where you are curious where there are trees that have been removed. Staff is unable to 
answer your questions this evening.  
 
Dennis Prince well ODOT took out a tree that wasn’t designed in the plan I wasn’t 
compensated for it, am I going to get another tree?  
 
City Administrator Gus Burril again I need more information Dennis I don’t have enough 
information to give you any answer to that. So if you could please high light the situation we 
will go to the ODOT project team and clarify what their intent is and get back to you. 
 
Dennis Prince just as an observation, is that big culvert thing down there art? It looks like a 
Bend round about art thing. 
 
City Administrator Gus Burril I don’t have any indication of that. 
 
Vice Chair Ali Alire so we are moving on to neutral testimony I don’t hear any, and opponent 
testimony I don’t hear any, applicant rebuttal? Ok none we are going to close the Public 
Hearing. The Planning Commission will deliberate. 
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz I would like to clarify some things, when are the businesses 
going to know what the cost of the signs are? Is this something where the City builds the 
signs and bills out to the businesses? How does this work? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead so the sign will be installed with the 
construction project which refers to as the J Street project. So the contractor will install it 
once it is installed or even before as soon as we know the dimensions that each business 
can install signs on. Then each business can submit a sign application to the City at the cost 
of $100.00 and we are working on the annual maintenance fee at this time. I did some rough 
estimates on power costs and it seemed to high so I am confirming with the City’s electrician 
on what that would be. The City will have some additional insurance costs we estimate with 
the information that we know the annual maintenance fee will be about $100.00 a year. That 
is just too simply recover our costs for operating the sign and the insurance on it. That fee will 
be adopted annually by the City Council by their annual fee rate resolution. It could change, it 
could go down or go up it would be reevaluated after one year of operation when we know 
what our real operational costs are. For the first year we are going to forecast those and do 
our best job of recovering the cost for the sign, and after the second year we will know those 
costs and be able to asses a fee that is consistent with the actual cost. 
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz so if you have a car run into it who pays for the replacement of 
that? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead well it will be the City’s sign and that is 
why we have insurance so the City will replace it. 
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz when you have an addition of a new company or a change in 
the company who pays for the change in that sign?  



 
 

Madras Planning Commission 
September 9, 2015 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead the business that wants to put signage on 
the sign will bear the cost for that. So they will need to go to a contractor and if they want to 
install the vinyl on the sign they can do that. 
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz so we already know what the square footage will be I assume 
we would already have square footage established of what each sign will have. So who 
makes the decision of what business has what square footage or portion of it?  
 
City Administrator Gus Burril we need to do a count on how many potential businesses we 
need to serve in those areas. I was looking at the Prince sections there and it looks like at 
least 5 and I don’t know if those areas can be subdivided in the future to be 6 to 8. So we 
might be leaning towards 8 placards in that area to serve future redevelopment needs. The 
sign company from the basis of the dimensions would give us some dimensions if we pick 8 
what size of placard could we work are way into for each of those. So we need to be working 
with the selected sign company and we need to check with ODOT on the selected firm that 
will be doing the work. They will probably be the same firm we will direct the businesses to 
that made the sign to get a placard. So those steps are in process but they are not fully 
defined on who we are working with yet. Gary I don’t know if you have knowledge of which 
firm we are working with yet. We will talk with the ODOT project team to get some more 
information. 
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz I certainly encourage that because they don’t like to put signs 
in the ground when it is cold. It is important to businesses to get their signage up. I would 
hope we could get this wrapped up.  
 
City Administrator Gus Burril Denise has been prompting us with the Council he is prompting 
us here tonight; we have been prompting the ODOT project team. I want to clearly state we 
are not trying to slow this down we are not prompting the ODOT project team. In fact I want 
to reiterate we are and not give the impression that we are not. If it is coming across that way 
I want to clearly state that is not the case, but if we don’t have the firm that is building it yet 
we can’t provide Denise who to talk to, to put a placard in. Denise if you have any feedback 
on how many placards you see in there it would be great to know that. A quick look each 
section might have a different head count for the number of placards. Does that sound 
reasonable to plan for 8 over time what are your thoughts?  
 
Dennis Prince I would think at least 5 or 6 it is pretty well limited to the businesses that are 
there and then my mother’s house that is zoned commercial. 
 
City Administrator Gus Burril if it redeveloped to something over time. I didn’t know if the 
motel could split off into offices and there are two or three tenants in there over time.  
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz so we can look at the three different signs and figure out what 
we do have and then add one or two or whatever is appropriate. Gary when are you going to 
decide on what sign company? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead I just heard today that the sign company 
selected was Redmond Signs. 
 
Commissioner Joe Krenowicz so we have a name now it is a matter of time line, and so if you 
can get back with the City and say this is the time line it helps the businesses. My other 
comment is Rich Black at the county we already know that businesses exist there we already 



 
 

Madras Planning Commission 
September 9, 2015 

Page 7 of 8 
 

have the names for the City Streets. We already have businesses that have numbers he 
should be able to get the numbers squared away so businesses with letter heads and such  
don’t have to wait until October to get this squared away. 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead I don’t disagree I know that the City 
Council next Tuesday night will consider the Planning Commission’s recommendation to 
name the one street Palmain Place. After that all the street names will be identified and then 
we can move forward on the addressing and the contractor will install the signs towards the 
end of the project. 
 
Vice Chair Ali Alire are the businesses required to be on the signs if they don’t want to pay 
the fee? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead there are no requirements; it is elective if 
they want to do that they can. 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIR ALI ALIRE TO APPROVE FILE V-15-2. THE MOTION 
WAS SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER DENISE PIZA.  THE MOTION PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Vice Chair Ali Alire now we will be adding the minutes from the August 19, 2015 meeting. 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead correct so at this time staff would like to 
present the August 19, 2015 minutes hopefully you have had a chance to review. This is from 
the August 19th meeting where the Planning Commission took formal action to recommend to 
City Council that they rename the particular street to Palmain. So the formal action this 
evening will be to approve the minutes if there are any changes please note them before you 
take formal action. 
 
Vice Chair Ali Alire does anyone have any changes? 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER JOE KRENOWICS TO APPROVE THE AUGUST 
19, 2015 MEETING MINUTES AS PRESENTED. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER DENISE PIZA.  THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

V. Additional Discussion 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead I wanted to let the Planning Commission 
know that next Wednesday night we will have a public meeting here in Council Chambers at 
6:00 p.m. this will be our 2nd public meeting that the Community Development Department 
has held. This is for the properties located south of Fairgrounds Road the City is considering 
rezoning those to mixed use employment zone. So we have mailed notice to all the affected 
property owners and in our first meeting we had the property owners come in and talked 
about the proposal. We will have a second meeting where we will respond to them and show 
them a refined proposal. That meeting and the feedback given at that meeting will be 
presented at the joint City/County Planning Commission meeting on Thursday September 24, 
2015. So this will be a little irregular, as a Commission we are proposing on having a work 
session with just the Madras Planning Commission on September 24, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. We 
will discuss the proposed changes to the industrial zone. We are trying to take the industrial 
zoning regulations and bring them up to 2015. Then at 7:00 p.m. we will go into a joint work 
session with the County Planning Commission where we will talk about some other 
amendments to the comprehensive plan.  
 



 
 

Madras Planning Commission 
September 9, 2015 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Just wanted to let you know that the September 24, 2015 will start at 5:30 p.m. and we will 
have the 7:00 meeting with the County Planning Commission. We will have our regularly 
scheduled meeting in October the first Wednesday. We would typically have a second 
meeting in October which would be the 21st but we will not meet on that day because we will 
need to have a joint public hearing with the County Planning Commission for the things we 
will discuss on September 24th.  

 
 

VI. Adjourn  
 
 

Meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
                       
Joel Hessel         Date 
Chair 
 
 
 
                
Nicholas Snead       Date 
Community Development Director                



  

 
 
Page -1- Request for Planning Commission Action 

CITY OF MADRAS 
Request for Planning Commission Action 

  
 
 
Date Submitted:    March 9, 2016 
 
Agenda Date Requested: March 16, 2016 
 
To:        Madras Planning Commission   
 
From:       Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director 
 
Files:       CU-16-1 (Conditional Use) 
        HO-16-1 (Home Occupation) 
 
Subject:      Daybreak Spa Studio Conditional Use and Home Occupation 

request for a massage and salon studio in the R-2 zone. 
 
Recommended Decision: Approve with Conditions of Approval 
 
TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One) 
 

[    ]      Formal Action/Motion    [        ]      No Action - Report Only 
 
[        ]      Other 

 
OVERVIEW: 
The Daybreak Spa Studio (applicant) has requested Conditional Use and Home Occupation 
approval for a massage and salon studio business that is proposed to be operated out of the 
residence where the applicant resides (Home Occupation) of which is located in the Single Family 
Residential Zone (R-1). The subject property is located in the R-1 zone which classifieds Home 
Occupations as a Conditional Use and requires approval from the Madras Planning Commission. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: 
120-Day Clock 
Quasi-judicial land use decisions are to be made with 120 days from the date the application was 
deemed complete. The applicant submitted a Conditional Use application on February 22, 2016 and 
deemed the application completed on February 22, 2016. On March 16, 2106, the land use proposal 
will be on day 24 of the 120 clock. 
 
Notice: 
On February 23, 2016 the Community Development Department (Department) notified all property 
owners within 250 feet of the subject property of the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation proposal. On February 23, 2016 the Department provided notice to the Development 
Team (i.e. agencies) requesting comments. The Department also published a Public Hearing Notice 
in the February 24, 2016 Madras Pioneer newspaper. Both the adjacent property owner notice and 
the Public Hearing notice published in the Madras Pioneer are consistent with the requirements for 



  

 
 
Page -2- Request for Planning Commission Action 

Public Hearings in Article 9 of the City of Madras Zoning Ordinance, No. 723.  
 
As of March 1, 2016, the Community Development Director received a voice message from the 
resident at 560 NE Beverly Street stating his concern for (1) the property owner does not maintain 
the shrubs adjacent to the Cedar and Beverly Streets right-of-way; (2) the City does not plow snow 
on Cedar and Beverly Streets; (3) the proposed salon will not be good for the neighborhood 
because it will bring more traffic to the neighborhood streets which will impact the condition of the 
streets. The recommended Findings and Decision (Attachment 1) discusses the resident’s 
concerns.  The Community Development Department has not received any other letters, emails or 
phone calls regarding the land use proposal. 
 
Issues 
Of the three concerns from the resident of 560 NE Beverly Street, staff finds the concern regarding 
traffic is the only concern related to the approval criteria for this land use proposal. Staff has 
developed findings determining that the proposed Home Occupation will generate additional traffic 
however the additional traffic does not cause the volume of traffic on the Local Streets to exceed 
their designed volume. As such the additional traffic generated from the Home Occupation is similar 
to the vehicle trips generated by a single family dwelling as determined by the Institute for 
Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual. Therefore, the applicant is not required to 
mitigate the additional traffic generated by the proposed use.  Additionally, to ensure the residential 
character of the neighborhood, livability, and property values are not negatively impacted by the 
proposed Home Occupation staff is recommending that conditions of approval be imposed on the 
use that limit the hours of operation to 10:00 AM to 7:00 PM daily and that customer parking be 
limited to either the subject property or on Cedar or Beverly Streets directly adjacent to the subject 
property. 
 
Applicable Criteria 
The applicable approval criteria to the proposed land use action are identified in the Recommended 
Findings and Decision (Attachment 1). These are the basis for the decision that the Planning 
Commission must legally base its decision for the land use proposal. The proposed Conditional Use 
is a quasi-judicial land use decision for which the Daybreak Spa Studio (applicant) has the burden of 
proof to demonstrate compliance with the approval criteria. In addition, such land use decisions are 
to be based on fact. According, the Planning Commission must determine the facts and base its 
decision on the proposed Conditional Use accordingly. Staff has reviewed the proposed Conditional 
Use and Home Occupation applications and has made findings of compliance that demonstrate the 
proposal is consistent with the approval criteria for Conditional Uses and Home Occupations. 
 
Staff notes that Home Occupation permits are administrative land use decisions that the Community 
Development Department reviews and approves. However because the property is zoned R-1 of 
which lists Home Occupations as a Conditional Use, Planning Commission approval is required. As 
such, staff has forwarded the Conditional Use and Home Occupation proposal to the Planning 
Commission to approve both land use action is one land use decision. This will allow the Planning 
Commission to review both land use proposals and review the two land use proposals 
simultaneously. Therefore, any action of the Planning Commission will affect both the Conditional 
Use and Home Occupation proposals. 
 
 
 
 



  

 
 
Page -3- Request for Planning Commission Action 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION: 
 
 Attachment 1:   Planning Commission Recommended Findings and Decision 
 Attachment 2:  Conditional Use applications 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission approve Files # CU-16-1 and HO-16-1, based on the Planning 
Commission Recommended Findings and Decision. 



City of Madras 
Community Development Department 
125 SW “E” Street Madras, OR, 97741 

541-475-2344 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS & DECISION 
 
 
 
FILES:   HO-16-1 & CU-16-1 

 
DATE APPLICATION 
SUBMITTED:  February 22, 2016 

 
APPLICANT/  
PROPERTY OWNER: Daybreak Spa Studio 
    Lorinda Roslund 
    403 NE Cedar Street 
    Madras, OR 97741 
 

LOCATION: The subject property addressed as 403 NE Cedar Street and is 
identified as tax lot 203 on Jefferson County Assessor’s 
Map # 11-13-01CA. 

 
REQUEST: The applicant has requested Home Occupation and 

Conditional Use approval for a massage and salon studio. 
 
ZONING:   Single Family Residential (R-1). 

 
PLANNING  
COMMISSION 
REVIEWER:  Nicholas Snead,  

Community Development Director 
541-475-2344, nsnead@ci.madras.or.us 

 
 

APPLICABLE ORDINANCE PROVISIONS AND CITY POLICIES 
 
Note: The City of Madras when issuing a Findings and Decision for a development 

attempts to list all applicable City ordinances and requirements.  However, should 
the City inadvertently not specify a particular ordinance, policy or standard, that 
oversight does not relieve the applicant from meeting the requirements from that 
ordinance, policy or standard, or remove the City’s obligation and authority to 
enforce that ordinance, policy or standard. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

mailto:nsnead@ci.madras.or.us


 
 

1. Chapter 8-12 of the Madras Development Code, Zoning: 
 

• Article 3 – Land Use Zones 
• Section -  3.1-Single Family Residential (R-1) 
• Section – 3.1.2-Home Occupation 

• Article 4 – Supplementary Provisions 
• Section – 4.10—Illegal Occupancy 
• Section – 4.12—Vision Clearance 

• Article 6 – Conditional Uses 
• Article 9 – Administrative Provisions 

 

 
 

EXHIBITS 
 
The following exhibits make up the record in this matter and are on file with the 
Community Development Department and are herein by reference incorporated into this 
land use decision as approval criteria and findings that support all findings of 
compliance with the applicable review criteria and conditions of approval. 

 
1. Conditional Use application and supporting information submitted by the 

applicant on February 22, 2016 and thereafter. 
2. February 23, 2016 Adjacent Property Owner Notice. 
3. February 23, 2016 Development Team Notice. 
4. February 24, 2016 Public Hearing Notice published in the Madras Pioneer 

newspaper. 
5. Comments submitted to the City of Madras Community Development 

Department regarding the matter as a result of the Adjacent Property Owner 
and Development Team Notices. 

 
 
 

FINDINGS 
 
1. PROPERTY LOCATION: 

The subject property addressed as 403 NE Cedar Street and is identified as tax 
lot 203 on Jefferson County Assessor’s Map # 11-13-01CA. 
 

2. ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION: 
The subject property is designated and zoned Single Family Residential (R-1) on 
the City of Madras Urban Area Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Map as shown 
in Figure 1 below. 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



 
3. SITE DESCRIPTION: 

The subject property is identified as Lot 1, Block 1, of the Herzberg Heights 
Subdivision. The property is developed with a single-family detached dwelling. 
Cedar Street is not improved to City standard, although it is paved and has curbs, it 
is not constructed to the City’s Local street standard. Cedar Street is does not have 
a functional classification in the City of Madras Transportation System Plan (2012) 
as the Herzberg and Bel Air Subdivisions were annexed into the City of Madras 
after the City’s Transportation Plan was adopted.  
 
Figure 1. Subject Property and Zoning. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



 
 
 

Figure 2. Aerial Photograph of Subject Property. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. SURROUNDING LAND USES: 
The properties to the north, east, south, and west of the subject property are 
zoned R-2 and are also developed with single-family detached dwellings as 
shown in Figures 1 and 2 (above). 

 
5. PROPOSAL: 

The applicant has requested Home Occupation and Conditional Use approval for 
a fire arms repair business. 
 

6. APPLICATION ACCEPTANCE DATE: 
The application was submitted on July 31, 2015 and deemed complete on July 31, 
2015. These land use decisions were rendered by the Madras Planning 
Commission on September 3, 2015, which is day 35 of the 120 clock. 

 
7. SITE PLAN REVIEW COMMITTEE COMMENTS: 

On August 7, 2015 the Community Development Department sent notice 
electronically via email to affected agencies (a.k.a the Development Team) that 
were provided electronic copies of the materials submitted by the applicant for 
review and were asked to provide comments to the Community Development 

ATTACHMENT 1



Department by March 4, 2016. Below are the comments that were received. 
 
City of Madras Public Works: 
The public works department has no comment. 
 
Jefferson County Fire District, Fire Marshall Requirements: 
No comments received. 
 
Jefferson County Building Official: 
No comments received. 
 
Oregon Department of Transportation, William Hilton and Michael Duncan: 
No comments received. 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED: 
On March 1, 2016 Del Poppy, who lives at 560 NE Beverly Drive called the 
Community Development Director and shared his concerns for the proposed 
Home Occupation. In particular, the resident was concerned about (1) the property 
owner does not maintain the shrubs adjacent to the Cedar and Beverly Streets 
right-of-way; (2) the City does not plow snow on Cedar and Beverly Streets; (3) 
the proposed salon will not be good for the neighborhood because it will bring 
more traffic to the neighborhood streets which will impact the condition of the 
streets. 

 
 
 
CHAPTER 8-9, GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MADRAS: REGULATING 
THE PLACEMENT OF SIGNS. 

 
ARTICLE 2: BASIC PROVISIONS 

 
Section 2.1 Sign Erection, Repair, Etc.: 
It is unlawful for any person to erect, repair, alter or relocate or maintain 
within this city, any sign or other graphic except as provided in this 
ordinance. 

 
FINDING: The applicant’s proposal does not include provisions for signs. As such, the 
applicant shall be required to submit a Sign Permit application for the proposed signage 
to the Community Development Department prior to installation of any signage on the 
subject property. The Planning Commission notes that Section 2.6 of the Ordinance No. 
693 regulates signage for residentially zoned properties. Planning Commission finds the 
above stated criterion is satisfied. 

 
CHAPTER 8-12, GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MADRAS: 
ESTABLISHING LAND USE ZONES TO REGULATE THE LOCATION OF BUILDING 
STRUCTURES AND THE USE OF LAND WITHIN THE CITY OF MADRAS, OREGON. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1



Section   8-12.2.2. Zoning   Application. Prior to the construction, 
alteration or change of use for a structure or lot a zoning application 
may be required from the City Community Development Department. 

 
FINDING: The applicant has requested Conditional Use and Home Occupation approval 
for a fire arms repair home occupation on the subject property. Such proposal requires a 
submittal of a Conditional Use and Home Occupation application to the City of Madras 
Community Development Department for approval. The Planning Commission finds the 
applicant has submitted the correct applications requesting approval for the proposed 
development prior to the use occurring. 

 
 

Section 8-12.2.3 Time Limit on a Zoning Application. Authorization of a 
zoning application shall be void after one (1) year unless a building 
permit has been obtained and substantial construction has taken place. 
However, the Community Development Director may extend 
authorization for an additional period not to exceed one (1) year upon 
request by the applicant or property owner. 

 
FINDING: Given the applicant’s ability to meet the imposed conditions of approval, the 
Planning Commission finds the proposed Home Occupation and Conditional Use will 
satisfy the stated criteria herein. Such approvals will be void after one-year of the land 
use decision becoming final if the applicant has not taken the necessary actions to 
perfect the approvals. If the applicant wishes to extend the land use approval, the 
applicant shall submit a formal letter to the Community Development Department 
Director requesting an approval extension for one (1) year. Land use approval 
extensions are only granted for one (1) year. 

 
SECTION 3.1.2 HOME OCCUPATION. Purpose: To conduct a lawful occupation 
by the resident(s) of the dwelling. 

 
A. Requirements: 

 
1. Home occupation must be operated in the primary dwelling or 

accessory structure on the same lot by the resident(s) of the 
dwelling. 

 
FINDING: Section 1.3 of the City of Madras Zoning Ordinance (No. 864) defines a 
Home Occupation as, “The lawful occupation conducted in the dwelling or accessory 
structure by the property owner(s) or person(s) residing in the dwelling.” Based on the 
materials submitted by the applicant, the Planning Commission finds the applicant 
resides on the subject property and therefore satisfies the definition of a Home 
Occupation and thereby the above stated standard. 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



B. Criteria: 
 

1. Will the operation of the home occupation be conducted in the 
dwelling or an accessory structure on the lot? 

 
FINDING: Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Home Occupation will 
conduct business from within the dwelling located on the subject property and thereby 
satisfy the above stated standards. 

 
2. Will the operation of the home occupation be conducted by a 

resident(s) of the dwelling? 
 
FINDING: Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Home Occupation will 
be operated by the applicant who is one of the residents of the dwelling on the subject 
property. 

 
3. Will there be employees? Part-time or full-time. 

 
FINDING: Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Home Occupation will 
have one part-time employee, the applicant. 

 
4. Will the residential character of the neighborhood change 

because of the “commercial” nature of the proposal? State 
how this will not change the residential character. 

 
FINDING: The applicant told the Community Development Director that the salon will 
operate one to two days per week. Based on the limited number of days per week the 
proposed Home Occupation will not generate traffic seven days per week. Additional 
traffic will be limited to one or two days per week. The applicant has not identified where 
customers of the Home Occupation will park. To ensure that the customers of the Home 
Occupation parking do not affect the residential neighborhood, the applicant shall only 
permit customers to parking their vehicles on Cedar or Beverly Streets adjacent to the 
subject property or on the subject property. This limitation shall be imposed as a 
condition of approval to ensure customer parking does not negatively affect the character 
of the neighborhood. Based on the applicant’s ability to comply with the imposed 
condition of approval, the above stated standard is satisfied. 
 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Customer parking for the Home Occupation shall be 
limited to either the subject property or on-street parking on Cedar and Beverly 
Streets directly adjacent to the subject property. 

 
5. Will traffic increase because of the proposal? State how it will 

not increase traffic in the residential neighborhood. 
 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds the resident of 560 NE Beverly Drive has 
expressed concerns about (1) the property owner does not maintain the shrubs adjacent 
to the Cedar and Beverly Streets right-of-way; (2) the City does not plow snow on Cedar 

ATTACHMENT 1



and Beverly Streets; (3) the proposed salon will not be good for the neighborhood 
because it will bring more traffic to the neighborhood streets which will impact the 
condition of the streets. The Planning Commission finds that concerns # 1 and 2 as 
identified by the resident of 560 NE Beverly are not related to the above stated criterion 
and, in general, the approval criteria for the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation. Specifically, the ability of the property owner or quality of landscaping 
maintenance on the subject property is not an approval criterion for a Conditional Use or 
Home Occupation. Additionally, the whether the City plows the snow on Cedar and or 
Beverly Streets is also not an approval criterion for the proposed Conditional Use and 
Home Occupation.  
 
However, concern #3 of the resident of 560 NE Beverly Drive is related to the above stated 
criterion. Specifically, the traffic generated by a Home Occupation may adversely impact 
the livability, value, and/or development of abutting properties and the surrounding area. 
The Planning Commission that the Institute for Transportation Engineers Trip Generation 
Manual 9th Ed. (ITE Manual) identifies that single family detached dwellings generate one 
(1) vehicle trip between the hours of 4:00 pm and 6:00 pm, Monday through Friday. The 
Commission finds that the ITE Manual does not account for vehicle trips related to parcel 
deliveries, service, or visitors to a dwelling as those vehicle trips vary between dwellings. In 
other words, one property owner may have daily parcel deliveries and a weekly house 
cleaner and therefore generates additional vehicle trips than what the ITE Manual estimates 
for average single family detached dwelling. Whereas another property owner may not 
receive any parcel deliveries or does not have a house cleaner and therefore generates 
one vehicle trip. 
 
The Planning Commission also considers that when the applicant is conducting the 
business of the Home Occupation, they are not using their vehicle and therefore not 
creating a vehicle trip. As such, Home Occupations when operating may reduce the number 
of total vehicle trips generated by the use that are associated with the resident and 
customers of the Home Occupation vehicle trips generated by the use. However, the 
Planning Commission finds the proposed Conditional Use and Home Occupation will 
generate additional vehicle trips but cannot quantify how many more trips will be generated. 
Furthermore, the Planning Commission finds that in the materials submitted by the 
applicant, the applicant will have a maximum of four clients per day, acknowledges that 
vehicle trip generation for single family detached dwellings varies, and therefore finds the 
additional vehicle trips generated by the proposed Conditional Use and Home Occupation 
to not be substantially greater than any other single family detached dwelling. Based on this 
finding the Planning Commission finds the proposed use will not significantly generate 
additional vehicle trips than a typical single family detached dwelling and thereby will not 
adversely affect the livability or property values of property adjacent or in the vicinity of the 
subject property. 
 
The Planning Commission also finds that the Herzberg Heights and Bel Air subdivisions 
were approved and platted by Jefferson County. The infrastructure serving the subdivisions 
was constructed to County standards that were in effect when the subdivisions were 
platted. After the subdivisions were developed, the City of Madras annexed the 
subdivisions. Cedar, Chestnut, Beverly, Buckeye, Plaza and Lakside Streets are not 

ATTACHMENT 1



constructed to City standard. Currently, Cedar, Chestnut, Beverly, Buckeye, Plaza and 
Lakside Streets are not under the jurisdiction of the City of Madras rather Jefferson County. 
Accordingly, Jefferson County is responsible for road maintenance and repair. Furthermore, 
it is Jefferson County’s policy that only in certain circumstances do they plow snow on 
County roads, which explains why the resident of 560 NE Beverly is concerned about the 
snow being plowed on Cedar and Beverly Streets. 
 
While Jefferson County is responsible for the maintentance of Cedar, Chestnut, Beverly, 
Buckeye, Plaza and Lakside Streets, the City is responsible for transportation planning for 
the aforementioned streets. The City of Madras Transportation System Plan (Ordinance No. 
847, pg. 146-153) functionally classifies the aforementioned streets as Local Streets and 
defines Local Streets as, “Local streets are primarily intended to provide access to abutting 
land uses. Local street facilities off the lowest volume of mobility and consequently tend to 
be short, low-speed facilities. As such, local streets primarily serve passenger cars, 
pedestrians, and bicyclists; heavy truck traffic should be discouraged. On-street parking is 
common and sidewalks may be present depending on the volume of traffic on the local road 
and the density of residential land use and in commercial areas.”  
 
Based on the function classification of the aforementioned streets in the City’s 
Transportation System Plan, the Planning Commission finds the proposed Conditional Use 
and Home Occupation trip generation will not cause the volume of traffic to exceed the 
designed traffic volume for Local Streets. Furthermore, the condition of the pavement of the 
roadway surface on Cedar and Beverly Streets will not be significantly degraded from the 
additional traffic generated by the proposed Conditional Use and Home Occupation such 
that the applicant would need to mitigate the impacts of the proposed use. Based on this 
information the Planning Commission finds that the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation will not negatively affect the livability or value of properties adjacent or in the 
vicinity of the subject property as a result of the additional vehicle trips generated by the 
proposed use. 
 
In summary, the Planning Commission finds the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation will generate additional vehicle traffic beyond the amount of a typical single 
family detached dwelling based on the Institute for Transportation Engineering Trip 
Generation Manual. However, the additional vehicle trips generated by the proposed use 
will not exceed the designed Local Street traffic volume. The Planning Commission 
considers the concerns identified by the resident of 560 NE Beverly Street, the trip 
generation of the proposed use, the provisions of the City of Madras Transportation 
System Plan, the limitations on customer parking, and limitations on the Home 
Occupation’s hours of operation, and concludes the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation satisfies the above stated standard. 
 

6. Will the hours of operation be consistent with the residential 
character of the neighborhood? 

 
FINDING: Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Home Occupation will 
conduct business between the hours of 10:00 AM to 7:00 PM. Additionally, the applicant 
has stated there likely be a maximum of only four clients per day; that there will only be 

ATTACHMENT 1



one or two clients present at any one time; and that the traffic impact won’t be noticeable. 
To ensure compliance with the above stated criterion and Section 3.1.2(B(9) on pages 
10-13 of this land use decision, the Planning Commission will limit the hours of operation 
for the proposed Conditional Use and Home Occupation to 10:00 AM to 7:00 PM daily. 
This limitation shall be imposed as condition of this land use approval. Based on the 
information furnished by the applicant and the applicant’s ability to comply with the 
imposed conditions of approval, the proposed use will not alter the residential character 
of the Herzberg Heights and Bel Air subdivisions (i.e. neighborhoods). 
 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL: The Home Occupation shall limit business hours to 
10:00 AM to 7:00 PM daily. 

 
7. Will not unreasonably interfere with other uses permitted in 

the residential zone in which the property is located. 
 
FINDING: Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Planning Commission 
finds the services provided by the Home Occupation will be conducted entirely from 
within the dwelling on the subject property and therefore will not interfere with the existing 
residential uses (i.e. dwellings) in the neighborhood. 

 
8. The proposal will be consistent with the City of Madras 

Comprehensive Plan and the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance and other applicable policies of the city. 

 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds the proposed Home Occupation is 
consistent with the City of Madras Comprehensive Plan. The Herzberg Heights 
Subdivision is zoned on the City of Madras Urban Area Comprehensive Plan and Zone 
Map as Single Family Residential (R-1). Furthermore the City’s Comprehensive Plan is 
implemented by the City’s Zoning Ordinance (No. 864) and therefore the proposed 
Conditional Use and Home Occupation ability to comply with the Zoning Ordinance 
equates to compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. Based on the applicant’s ability to 
comply with the approve criteria identified in this land use decision, the proposed 
Conditional Use and Home Occupation will satisfy the above stated standard. 
 
 

9. Taking into account the location, size, design, and operation 
characteristics of the proposal, the  home occupat i on  
w i l l  not  imp ose  any adverse impact on the livability, value, 
and/or development of abutting properties and the surrounding 
area. 

 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds primary use of the property is a single family 
residence. Based on the materials provided by the applicant, the home occupation will be 
conducted from within a portion of the existing dwelling on the property, the applicant has 
not proposed structural alterations to the existing dwelling, and the resident of the 
dwelling will be the only person engaged in the Home Occupation. The applicant has not 
submitted information identifying where customers of the Home Occupation will park. The 

ATTACHMENT 1



Planning Commission finds that customer parking may affect the livability and value of 
properties adjacent or in the vicinity of the subject property. To ensure livability and 
property values are not compromised as a result of the proposed Home Occupation, the 
Planning Commission finds that customers shall either park on Cedar or Beverly Street 
directly adjacent to the subject property or on the subject property. This requirement shall 
be imposed as a condition of the Conditional Use and Home Occupation approval to 
ensure the livability and value of properties adjacent or in the vicinity of the subject 
property are not negatively affected by the proposed use. 
 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Customers of the Home Occupation shall either 
park on Cedar or Beverly Street directly adjacent to the subject property or on the 
subject property. 

 
The Planning Commission finds that the City of Madras Community Development 
Department mailed notice of the proposed Home Occupation to all property owners 
within 250 feet of the subject property on February 23, 2016 and published notice of the 
March 16,  2016 Planning Commission public hearing in the February 24, 2016 Madras 
Pioneer newspaper. As previously discussed, the resident of 560 NE Beverly Drive has 
expressed concerns about (1) the property owner does not maintain the shrubs adjacent 
to the Cedar and Beverly Streets right-of-way; (2) the City does not plow snow on Cedar 
and Beverly Streets; (3) the proposed salon will not be good for the neighborhood 
because it will bring more traffic to the neighborhood streets which will impact the 
condition of the streets. The Planning Commission finds that concerns # 1 and 2 as 
identified by the resident of 560 NE Beverly are not related to the above stated criterion 
and, in general, the approval criteria for the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation. Specifically, the ability of the property owner or quality of landscaping 
maintenance on the subject property is not an approval criterion for a Conditional Use or 
Home Occupation. Additionally, the whether the City plows the snow on Cedar and or 
Beverly Streets is also not an approval criterion for the proposed Conditional Use and 
Home Occupation.  
 
However, concern #3 of the resident of 560 NE Beverly Drive is related to the above stated 
criterion. Specifically, the traffic generated by a Home Occupation may adversely impact 
the livability, value, and/or development of abutting properties and the surrounding area. 
The Planning Commission that the Institute for Transportation Engineers Trip Generation 
Manual 9th Ed. (ITE Manual) identifies that single family detached dwellings generate one 
(1) vehicle trip between the hours of 4:00 pm and 6:00 pm, Monday through Friday. The 
Commission finds that the ITE Manual does not account for vehicle trips related to parcel 
deliveries, service, or visitors to a dwelling as those vehicle trips vary between dwellings. In 
other words, one property owner may have daily parcel deliveries and a weekly house 
cleaner and therefore generates additional vehicle trips than what the ITE Manual estimates 
for average single family detached dwelling. Whereas another property owner may not 
receive any parcel deliveries or does not have a house cleaner and therefore generates 
one vehicle trip. 
 
The Planning Commission also considers that when the applicant is conducting the 
business of the Home Occupation, they are not using their vehicle and therefore not 

ATTACHMENT 1



creating a vehicle trip. As such, Home Occupations when operating may reduce the number 
of total vehicle trips generated by the use that are associated with the resident and 
customers of the Home Occupation vehicle trips generated by the use. However, the 
Planning Commission finds the proposed Conditional Use and Home Occupation will 
generate additional vehicle trips but cannot quantify how many more trips will be generated. 
Furthermore, the Planning Commission finds that in the materials submitted by the 
applicant, the applicant will have a maximum of four clients per day, acknowledges that 
vehicle trip generation for single family detached dwellings varies, and therefore finds the 
additional vehicle trips generated by the proposed Conditional Use and Home Occupation 
to not be substantially greater than any other single family detached dwelling. Based on this 
finding the Planning Commission finds the proposed use will not significantly generate 
additional vehicle trips than a typical single family detached dwelling and thereby will not 
adversely affect the livability or property values of property adjacent or in the vicinity of the 
subject property. 
 
The Planning Commission also finds that the Herzberg Heights and Bel Air subdivisions 
were approved and platted by Jefferson County. The infrastructure serving the subdivisions 
was constructed to County standards that were in effect when the subdivisions were 
platted. After the subdivisions were developed, the City of Madras annexed the 
subdivisions. Cedar, Chestnut, Beverly, Buckeye, Plaza and Lakside Streets are not 
constructed to City standard. Currently, Cedar, Chestnut, Beverly, Buckeye, Plaza and 
Lakside Streets are not under the jurisdiction of the City of Madras rather Jefferson County. 
Accordingly, Jefferson County is responsible for road maintenance and repair. Furthermore, 
it is Jefferson County’s policy that only in certain circumstances do they plow snow on 
County roads, which explains why the resident of 560 NE Beverly is concerned about the 
snow being plowed on Cedar and Beverly Streets. 
 
While Jefferson County is responsible for the maintentance of Cedar, Chestnut, Beverly, 
Buckeye, Plaza and Lakside Streets, the City is responsible for transportation planning for 
the aforementioned streets. The City of Madras Transportation System Plan (Ordinance No. 
847, pg. 146-153) functionally classifies the aforementioned streets as Local Streets and 
defines Local Streets as, “Local streets are primarily intended to provide access to abutting 
land uses. Local street facilities off the lowest volume of mobility and consequently tend to 
be short, low-speed facilities. As such, local streets primarily serve passenger cars, 
pedestrians, and bicyclists; heavy truck traffic should be discouraged. On-street parking is 
common and sidewalks may be present depending on the volume of traffic on the local road 
and the density of residential land use and in commercial areas.”  
 
Based on the function classification of the aforementioned streets in the City’s 
Transportation System Plan, the Planning Commission finds the proposed Conditional Use 
and Home Occupation trip generation will not cause the volume of traffic to exceed the 
designed traffic volume for Local Streets. Furthermore, the condition of the pavement of the 
roadway surface on Cedar and Beverly Streets will not be significantly degraded from the 
additional traffic generated by the proposed Conditional Use and Home Occupation such 
that the applicant would need to mitigate the impacts of the proposed use. Based on this 
information the Planning Commission finds that the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation will not negatively affect the livability or value of properties adjacent or in the 

ATTACHMENT 1



vicinity of the subject property as a result of the additional vehicle trips generated by the 
proposed use. 
 
In summary, the Planning Commission finds the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation will generate additional vehicle traffic beyond the amount of a typical single 
family detached dwelling based on the Institute for Transportation Engineering Trip 
Generation Manual. However, the additional vehicle trips generated by the proposed use 
will not exceed the designed Local Street traffic volume. The Planning Commission 
considers the concerns identified by the resident of 560 NE Beverly Street, the trip 
generation of the proposed use, the provisions of the City of Madras Transportation 
System Plan, the limitations on customer parking, and limitations on the Home 
Occupation’s hours of operation, and concludes the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation satisfies the above stated standard. 

 
10. The proposal will preserve assets of particular interest to the 

community. 
 
FINDING: The materials submitted by the applicant do not directly address this criterion. 
As such, the Planning Commission finds that the applicant has satisfied the approval 
criteria for a Conditional Use and Home Occupation which establishes that the proposed 
use will not negatively affect the residential character of the neighborhood for which the 
proposed use is locate. Furthermore the Planning Commission finds that Home 
Occupations can provide numerous benefits for both home-based workers and the town. 
Home-based businesses provide useful services and encourage business growth by 
eliminating the initial need for some small businesses to rent commercial space, an 
important factor to someone who is just starting a new venture. Working at home also 
saves commuting and childcare costs and reduces traffic congestion. Home occupations 
can also provide many people who might be unable to work outside the home (including 
single parents, the elderly, and the disabled) an opportunity to earn a living. And by 
creating activity in residential neighborhoods that might otherwise be deserted during the 
day, home occupations help to reduce crime. Based on these findings the Planning 
Commission finds the above stated standard to be satisfied. 

 
Section 8-12.4.10. Illegal Occupancy. Any use of premises or a building, 
which deviates from, or violates any of the provisions of this ordinance, 
shall be termed an illegal occupancy and the persons responsible shall be 
subject to the penalties herein provided. 
 

FINDING: Planning Commission finds the applicant is required to receive Home 
Occupation approval for the proposed land use. The applicant shall be required to meet 
all applicable requirements of the City of Madras’ Ordinances relating to the development 
of the subject property. It shall be a condition of approval that any use of premises or a 
building, which deviates from, or violates any of the provisions of this ordinance or this 
land use decision, shall be termed an illegal occupancy and the persons responsible 
shall be subject to enforcement and penalties of the City of Madras Zoning Ordinance. 

 
CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Any use of the premises or building which deviates 

ATTACHMENT 1



from, or violates any of the provisions of this ordinance or this land use decision, 
shall be termed an illegal occupancy and the persons responsible shall be subject 
to enforcement and penalties of the City of Madras Zoning Ordinance (No. 864). 

 
Section 8-12.4.11 Vision Clearance. 

 
FINDING: Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Planning Commission 
finds the applicant has not propose any construction or alterations the subject property or 
dwelling on the subject property. As such, the Planning Commission finds the above 
stated standard to be satisfied. 

 
Section 8-12.4.13 Signs. Sign placement and size shall be regulated 
according to the City’s sign. 

 
FINDING: As previously discussed, the applicant does not plan to install signage for the 
proposed Home Occupation. As such, the Planning Commission finds the above stated 
standard to be not applicable to the land use action. 

  
SECTION 3.1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL  (R-1). 
 

B. CONDITIONAL USES.  (Subject to Site Plan Review) 
 

1. Home Occupations (see Section 3.1.2) (Planning Commission 
Review) 

 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds the applicant has proposed a Home 
Occupation on a property that is zoned R-1. As stated above, Home Occupations in the  
R-1 zone are Conditional Use which required Conditional Use approval from the Madras 
Planning Commission. The Planning Commission finds the applicant has filed a 
Conditional Use and Home Occupation applications which are the required for the 
proposed Home Occupation located in the R-1 zone.  
 
ARTICLE 6:  CONDITIONAL USES 
 
SECTION 6.1 AUTHORIZATION TO GRANT OR DENY CONDITIONAL USES. 
 

A. Conditional Uses listed, or otherwise described in the Zoning Ordinance may 
be permitted, enlarged or otherwise altered, upon authorization by the 
Planning Commission in accordance with the standards and conditions in 
this Article the Planning Commission may elect to forward any request to the 
City Council for determination.  In permitting a Conditional Use or the 
modification of a Conditional Use, the Planning Commission may impose any 
additional conditions necessary to protect the best interests of the 
surrounding property or the City as a whole. 

 
B. Standards for granting Conditional Uses are: 

 

ATTACHMENT 1



1. The proposal will be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds that the City’s Comprehensive Plan is 
implemented by the City’s Zoning Ordinance (No. 864) and therefore the proposed 
Conditional Use and Home Occupation ability to comply with the Zoning Ordinance 
equates to compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. Based on the applicant’s ability to 
comply with the approve criteria identified in this land use decision, the proposed 
Conditional Use and Home Occupation will satisfy the above stated standard. As such, 
the Planning Commission finds the above stated criterion is satisfied. 
 

2. The site size, dimensions, location, topography and access are adequate 
for the needs of the proposed use or structure, considering building 
mass, parking, traffic, noise, vibration, exhaust/emissions, light, glare, 
erosion, odor, dust, visibility, safety, and aesthetic considerations. 

 
3. Taking into account location, size, design, and operating characteristics, 

the proposal, including any proposed conditions of approval, is 
compatible with and will have a minimal adverse impact on abutting 
properties and the surrounding area in terms of: 

 
a.  livability,  
 
b.  property values, and  
 
c.  development opportunities  

 
FINDING: The Planning Commission herein by reference incorporates the findings for 
Home Occupations under criterion 3.1.1(B)(9) on pages 9-11 of this land use decision. 
Based on these findings and the applicant’s ability to comply with the conditions of 
approval set forth in this land use decision, the Planning Commission finds the proposed 
Conditional Use and Home Occupation complies with the above stated standard. 
 

4. The proposal will preserve assets of particular interest to the community. 
 
FINDING: The materials submitted by the applicant do not directly address this criterion. 
As such, the Planning Commission finds that the applicant has satisfied the approval 
criteria for a Conditional Use and Home Occupation which establishes that the proposed 
use will not negatively affect the residential character of the neighborhood for which the 
proposed use is locate. Furthermore the Planning Commission finds that Home 
Occupations can provide numerous benefits for both home-based workers and the town. 
Home-based businesses provide useful services and encourage business growth by 
eliminating the initial need for some small businesses to rent commercial space, an 
important factor to someone who is just starting a new venture. Working at home also 
saves commuting and childcare costs and reduces traffic congestion. Home occupations 
can also provide many people who might be unable to work outside the home (including 
single parents, the elderly, and the disabled) an opportunity to earn a living. And by 
creating activity in residential neighborhoods that might otherwise be deserted during the 
day, home occupations help to reduce crime. Based on these findings the Planning 

ATTACHMENT 1



Commission finds the above stated standard to be satisfied. 
 

5. The applicant has a bona fide intent and capability to develop and use the 
land as proposed and has some appropriate purpose for submitting the 
proposal and is not motivated solely by such purposes as the alteration of 
property values for speculative purposes. 

 
FINDING: Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Planning Commission 
finds no reason or justification to question the intent or ability of the applicant to open a 
Home Occupation and comply with the provisions of this land use decision. The Planning 
Commission finds the applicant will have the capability to use the subject property in a 
manner that is consistent with the City of Madras Zoning Ordinance, No. 864 and in doing 
so will satisfy the above stated standard. 
 

6. The proposal will not place an excessive burden on sewage, water supply, 
parks, schools, or other public facilities including traffic flows in the area. 

  
FINDING: The Planning Commission relies upon the City of Madras Public Works Director 
for determining the impacts of the proposed Home Occupation on the City’s sewer, 
domestic water, transportation, parks and stormwater facilities. The Planning Commission 
finds the Public Works Director has stated, “The public works department has no 
comment” and therefore finds there are no impacts to the City’s infrastructure that need to 
be mitigated by the applicant as a result of the proposed use. 
 

C. In permitting a new Conditional Use the Planning Commission may impose 
(in addition to those standards and requirements expressly specified by this 
ordinance) additional conditions, which the Planning Commission considers 
necessary to protect the best interests of the surrounding area or the city as 
a whole.  These conditions may include, but are not limited to the following: 

 
1. Increasing the required lot size or yard dimension. 

 
  2. Limiting the height, size, or location of buildings. 
 
  3. Controlling the location and number of vehicle access points. 
 

4. Increasing the street width. 
 
  5. Increasing the number of required off-street parking spaces. 
 
  6. Limiting the number, size, location, and lighting of signs. 
 

7. Required diking, fencing, screening, landscaping, or other 
facilities to protect adjacent or nearby property. 

 
  8. Designating sites for open space. 
 
FINDING: As previously discussed, the applicant has not identified where customers of 

ATTACHMENT 1



the Home Occupation will park. To ensure customer parking does not negatively affect the 
livability and property values of the neighborhood, a condition of approval has been 
imposed to restrict customer parking to either the subject property or on Cedar or Beverly 
Streets directly adjacent to the subject property. Based on the applicant’s ability to comply 
with the imposed conditions of approval, the comments submitted by the Development 
Team (i.e. agency comments) there is not a need to impose additional conditions of 
approval related to Section 6.1(C)(1)-(8) for the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation. However, the Community Development Director has determined that the 
applicant has not filed Business License application with the City of Madras as required by 
the City’s Business License Ordinance No. 849. As such, the Planning Commission finds 
it necessary to impose a condition of approval to require the applicant to obtain a 
Business License from the City of Madras in accordance with Ordinance No. 849. Based 
on the applicant’s ability to comply with the imposed condition of approval, the Planning 
Commission finds the above stated criteria are satisfied. 
 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL: The applicant to obtain a Business License from the 
City of Madras in accordance with Ordinance No. 849. 

 
D. In the case of a use existing prior to the effective date of this ordinance and 

classified in this ordinance as a Conditional Use, any change in the use or in 
lot area, or an alteration of structure shall conform with the requirements for 
Conditional Use. 

 
FINDING: Planning Commission has determined that the proposed Conditional Use and 
Home Occupation did not exist prior to the effective date of the City of Madras Zoning 
Ordinance No. 874. As such, the Planning Commission finds the proposed Conditional 
Use and Home Occupation is not required to demonstrate compliance with Section 5.1—
Non-Conforming Uses. 
 
SECTION 6.2 PROCEDURE FOR TAKING ACTION ON A CONDITIONAL USE.   The 
procedure for taking action on a Conditional Use application shall be as follows: 
 

A. A property owner may initiate a request for a Conditional Use by filing an 
application with the City Community Development Department. 

 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds the applicant has submitted the required 
Conditional Use and Home Occupation applications, materials, and application fee to the 
City of Madras Community Development Department and thereby satisfied the above 
stated standard. 
 

B. Before the Planning Commission may act on a Conditional Use application a 
public hearing shall be held pursuant to Sections 9.3, 9.5 to 9.17. 

 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds a public hearing for the Planning Commission 
was held on March 16, 2016 at 7:00 PM at City Hall in the Council Chambers. The 
Community Development Department has published a Public Notice of the public hearing 
in the February 24, 2016 Madras Pioneer newspaper at least 21 days in advance of the 
public hearing. Additionally, Community Development Department has mailed a public 
hearing notice to all property owners within 250 feet of the subject property on February 

ATTACHMENT 1



23, 2016. As such, the Planning Commission will hold a public hearing for the proposed 
Home Occupation in a manner that is consistent with Sections 9.3, 9.5 through 9.17 in 
Article 9 of the City of Madras Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance No. 864) and thereby 
satisfies the above stated standard. 
 

C. The decision of the Planning Commission shall be final unless appealed 
under Section 9.21.  An appeal of a Planning Commission decision shall 
follow the appeals process as outlined in Sections 9.22 and 9.23.  

 
1. The City Council shall review the decision of the Planning Commission on 

the record without hearing further evidence.  The Council shall affirm the 
decision of the Planning Commission or may modify any conditions of 
approval made by the Planning Commission. 

 
2. The City Council decision on the Planning Commission action shall be 

appealed to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) within twenty one (21) 
days of the date the City Council decision is mailed. 

 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds the above stated requirements to be applicable 
to the proposed Home Occupation. 
 
SECTION 6.3 TIME LIMIT. Authorization of a Conditional Use shall be void after one 
(1) year unless a building permit has been obtained and remains valid.  However, a 
written request to extend the time limit for an additional period not to exceed one 
(1) year may be submitted to the Community Development Department for 
scheduling before the Planning Commission for their determination. 
 
SECTION 6.4 LIMITATION ON REAPPLICATIONS.  No application of a property 
owner for a Conditional Use shall be considered by the Planning Commission 
within a one (1) year period immediately following a previous denial of such 
request. 
 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds the above stated standard to apply to the 
proposed Home Occupation. 
 
8-12.9: ARTICLE 9:  ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS. 

 
Section 8-12.9.2. Land Use Permit: The words Land Use Permit, as used in 
this Article, means any permitted use of land, other than a building, sign, 
sanitation or utility connection permit. 

 
FINDING: The applicant has requested Home Occupation and Conditional Use approval 
which is considered to be a Land Use Permit under the definitions of the City of Madras 
Zoning Ordinance No. 864 and therefore all applicable provisions of the City of Madras 
development codes applicable to Land Use Permits shall govern development on the 
subject property. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



Section 8-12.9.3, Administrative Actions: An application for a Land Use 
Permit,    other    than    a    Subdivision,    Planned    Unit    Development, 
Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment, and Zone Change may be decided as 
an administrative action. 

 
FINDING: The Planning Commission finds that the procedural requirements for a land use 
action that is not an Administrative Actions has been followed as stipulated in Article 9 of 
the City of Madras Zoning Ordinance No. 864 and thereby satisfies the above stated 
criteria. 
 
 

DECISION 
 
Based on the “Findings” described above, and when the conditions set forth in each 
“Finding” are met, it has been determined that the proposed Conditional Use and Home 
Occupation will meet the applicable criteria set forth in the General Ordinances of 
the City of Madras as herein. Therefore, the City of Madras Community 
Development Department hereby grants approval of CU-16-1 and HO-16-1 (Daybreak 
Spa Salon), subject to the following conditions being satisfied as specified herein. This 
land use approval is based on the applicant meeting all conditions identified in the 
section entitled “Findings”. Approval is based on the application and materials submitted 
on February 22, 2015 by the applicant and thereafter, and all items listed under 
“Exhibits.” Any alteration to the approved plans, except modified by the following 
conditions of approval, may require a modification or a new application. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
 
1. Any use of the premises or building which deviates from or violates any of the 

provisions of this ordinance, shall be termed an illegal occupancy and the persons 
responsible shall be subject to the penalties provided in the City of Madras Zoning 
Ordinance (No. 864). 

 
2. The Home Occupation shall limit business hours to 10:00 AM to 7:00 PM daily. 
 
3. Customers of the Home Occupation shall either park on Cedar or Beverly Street 

directly adjacent to the subject property or on the subject property. 
 
4. The applicant to obtain a Business License from the City of Madras in accordance 

with Ordinance No. 849. 
 
END OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



 
THIS DECISION BECOMES FINAL FIFTEEN (15) DAYS FROM DATE MAILED 
UNLESS A WRITTEN APPEAL IS SUBMITTED TO THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT WITH A PAYMENT OF A THE APPEAL FEE AS 
SPECIFIED IN THE CURRENT CITY OF MADRAS FEE RESOLUTION. FOR MORE 
INFORMATION ON APPEALS, PLEASE CALL (541) 323-2916. 
 
In accordance with Madras Land Development Ordinance (MLDO) Section 9.26, all 
land use approvals shall be valid for a period of one (1) year unless extended in 
compliance with Section 9.27 of the MLDO. Such extensions shall be 
administrative, in writing, and not subject to appeal. Any change or modification 
will require a new application and approval by the City of Madras Community 
Development Department. 
 
 
 
             
Joel Hessel, Chair      Date 
Madras Planning Commission  

 

             
Mailed by       Date 
Nicholas Snead 
Community Development Director 

 

cc: Development Team, Parties of the Record, Files CU-16-1 and HO-16-1. 

ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



CEDAR

ROYAL

B
E

V
E

R
LY

403 NE Cedar Street

The City of Madras uses GIS data in support of internal business
functions and the public services it provides. GIS data may not be
suitable for other purposes or uses. The requestor shall verify
information derived from GIS data before making any decisions or
taking any actions based on the information. The City of Madras shall
not be liable for errors in the GIS data. This includes errors of
omission, commission, errors concerning the content of the data, and
relative and relational accuracy of the data. The City of Madras
assumes no legal responsibility for this information.

1 inch = 65 feet

N.Snead, City of Madras, 2/23/2016

Legend

Subject Property

ATTACHMENT 2



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

SEE SURVEY BY
BACHAND
#145129
7/82

SEE PAVEY SURVEY

10

7

SEE MAP 11 13 1BD

I.R.

SE
E

 M
A

P
 1

1 
13

 1
C

B

SE
E

 M
A

P
 1

1 
13

 1
D

B

SEE MAP 11 13 1CD

TO PUBLIC FOR ROADS  50-709

PT. BEING
S68°05'W  1236.2
FROM CENTER SEC. 1

1/2"I.P.

FD. I.R.

1/2"
I.R.

5/8"
I.R.

0.26 AC

20

1

2

#155207
8/13/85

SURVEY
#1552045
6/84

3

4

5

6

101

700800900

502 503 504 204

216210215

100011001200

1300

1500
500 501

509

1902

1905

1904

23
03

201

205 206

207

2202

2203

400

300

212

200

213 214

203

510

211

2101
2106

210521042103

2200

2102

2107

506

230223012300

100

202
600

2201

5

1
2

3
4

1 2 4

5 6

1

508

1400

1600

1700

1800 2000

0.18 AC 0.22 AC

2 3 4

1

2

1 2 3

456

1
2

3
4

3

20
0

115

203.72

416.34

N
11°04'W

10

N
12°25'59"W

210.74

121.25

80.00

80.00

80.00

60

60 60 60

11
2.

68 13
6.

31

20
11

6.
05

13
6.

05
41

4.
75

72.98

96.7181.94

N89°56'00"W

74
.0

0

S0
0°

04
'0

0"
W

85
.00

S45
°0

4'0
0"

W

12
5.

82

S0
0°

04
'0

0"
W

50
5/8"I.R.

26
0.

00
N

00
°0

9'
00

"W

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

93.80

97.34

90

9090

90

100

30

30N89°56'00"W

23
0.

0

300
S89°56'00"E

25.5

50

30
0

93.10

96.64

85.00 84.66

239.66

S45°24'E

115

93 93

10
0

10
0

19
2.

93

207.40

22.24

300

99.33
128.64

182.99

81.9481.94

20.06

N
03°52'W

126.21

85
.0

6
38

.0
1

10
0

50

65

125

10
0

20
8

90.16 85.00 85.0085.00

S89°56'E 700.45

15
0.

00

N
00

°0
4'

00
"E

145.01'

N89-57-59E

S0
0°

04
'W

72
0

N
00

°0
4'

00
"E

85.00

85
85

84.83

85.12
145

76.98

187.02

169.31

151.61

133.90N
12°25'38"W

N
12°20'41"W

N
12°25'39"W

N
12°25'43"W

54
5

S0
0°

04
'W

65

300

180.39

N
00

°0
2'

11
"E

13
6.

41

4

TI
E

S41
°2

9'W

54
9.2

6

4

11
3.

69

50'

S89-56-52E                                            298.36'

N
00

-0
5-

36
E

51
9.

35
'

N89°56'00"W 402.02

180

17
5

20
0

S0
0°

09
'W

85.37
85.37

85.37
90.88

S0
0°

04
'W

14
2.

70

S0
0°

09
'W

15
0.

77

15
8.

74

16
6.

92

25
8.

82

180.00

50

13
7.

45

300

N
00

°1
1'

E
57

9.
30

N
00

°0
4'

E
72

0

25.5

51.0
N89°56'W

300

17
0.

0

11
0.

00

N
00

°0
4'

E
72

0

12

14
8

14
5.

59

187

106.70

12.24

18
0.

0

12
0

300

80.00

50.00
10

110

103.45

125111.23 N86°08'E

102.10

118.64
N

12°24'42"W

101.60

36
9.

80
'

13
7.

45

30

30

180.33S89°56'00"E

N89°56'00"W 180.10

11
2.

45

11
3.

59

90.56
90.56

90.76
90.76

20
.2

8

R
=150

97
.2

S0
1°

41
'E

15

15

196.7

70

70.0 55

11
5.

57

100

10
0

100

10
0

100

100

20

N89°56'W 703.80

100

100 50

11
5

100

100

11
5

15

15 70.00

30

82.0

11
1.

65

65.36

11
0

141

13
19

.8
5

L=145.35

L=42.45

L=65.9

L=86.61

L=40.19

80

N89-57-59E                           145.01'

.11 AC

S0
0°

14
'W

13
1.

35

50

29.59

STREETCEDARNE

ST
R

E
ET

10
TH

ST
R

E
ET

10
TH

ST
.

N.E. ROYAL
AVENUE

D
R

IV
E

BE
VE

R
LY

N
. E

.

N. E.  SHADY  LANE

OAK STREET

N
. E

. .47 AC

1/16  COR.
1/16 COR.

0.24 AC.0.27 AC.

N.E.

0.66 AC.

0.18 AC. 0.21 AC.

2.00 AC.

0.22 AC.
0.25 AC.0.24 AC.

NE

0.24 AC.

2.90 AC.

.17 AC
.55 AC

0.70 AC.

EASEMENT

12
' E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

0.58 AC.

0.24 AC.

0.23 AC.0.26 AC.0.33 AC.0.36 AC. 0.29 AC.

0.24 AC.

0.25 AC. 0.22 AC. 0.22 AC.

0.26 AC. 0.26 AC.

.31 AC

10' DITCH
EASEMENT

6' EASEMENT

50'

47-278

0.27 AC.0.21 AC.0.27 AC.

30' EASEMENT

1.85 AC.

1.16 AC.

0.96 AC.

1.45 AC.

0.50 AC.

3.50 AC.

0.30 AC.

0.01 AC.

0.24 AC.
0.24 AC.

0.33 AC.

0.29 AC.

0.29 AC.
0.30 AC. 0.31 AC.

0.23 AC.

0.25 AC.

0.26 AC.

1.37 AC. 4.96 AC.

PARCEL 1

0.01 AC.

PARTITION    PLAT

NO.  90-02

HERZBERG

HEIGHTS

ADDITION

1.58 AC

.83 AC

S89-1-57E
55'

S00-02-11E
137'

N85-59-46E
55'

1
2

3

PARCEL 2
153.11'

SEE SURVEY:
2012-2692 (CS# 12-010)

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED FOR
ASSESSMENT PURPOSE ONLY

N.E.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC.1 T.11S. R.13E. W.M.
JEFFERSON COUNTY

1" = 100'
CANCELLED:
     208
     209
     505
     507
     1900
     1901
     1903
     2100
     505

11.13.1CA

11.13.1CA

0 100 200 300 400 Feet

 Revised
12/07/2012

Map Produced:
12/07/2012

ACCT# MAP ID
1034 111301CA00100
1035 111301CA00101
1036 111301CA00200
1037 111301CA00201
1038 111301CA00202
1039 111301CA00203
1040 111301CA00204
1041 111301CA00205
1042 111301CA00206
1043 111301CA00207
1046 111301CA00210
1047 111301CA00211
1048 111301CA00212
1049 111301CA00213
1050 111301CA00214
1051 111301CA00215
11611 111301CA00216
1052 111301CA00300
1053 111301CA00400
1054 111301CA00500
1055 111301CA00501
1056 111301CA00502
1057 111301CA00503
1058 111301CA00504
1060 111301CA00506
1062 111301CA00508
1063 111301CA00509
12647 111301CA00510
1064 111301CA00600
1065 111301CA00700
1066 111301CA00800
1067 111301CA00900
1068 111301CA01000
1069 111301CA01100
1070 111301CA01200
1071 111301CA01300
1072 111301CA01400
1073 111301CA01500
1074 111301CA01600
1075 111301CA01700
1076 111301CA01800
9047 111301CA01902
9048 111301CA01904
9049 111301CA01905
10222 111301CA02000
1080 111301CA02101
10223 111301CA02102
1081 111301CA02103
1082 111301CA02104
1083 111301CA02105
1084 111301CA02106
10265 111301CA02107
10224 111301CA02200
10225 111301CA02201
11161 111301CA02202
11696 111301CA02203
1085 111301CA02300
1086 111301CA02301
1087 111301CA02302
1088 111301CA02303

ATTACHMENT 2




























	March 16, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda
	September 2, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
	Daybreak Spa Salon Conditional Use & Home Occupation Staff Report
	Attachment 1: Recommended Planning Commission Findings & Decision
	Attachment 2: Daybreak Spa Salon Conditional Use Application

	Planning Commission By-Laws



